


Table of Contents
March 19, 2025

Agenda Item HIIL......oooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii e Approval of Agenda
Agenda Item #IV........................Approval of the Minutes of the Work Session of March 5, 2025
Agenda Item #V.....cccceeivninnnnnnn. Approval of the Minutes of the Regular Session of March 5§, 2025

Agenda Item #VIL...cooiniiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiir i e General Manager/Staff Reports



Approval of Agenda
Agenda Item #111






Approval of Minutes
Work Session 3-5-2025
Agenda Item #IV



WORK SESSION MINUTES - WEDNESDAY, MARCH 5, 2025
STATE OF KANSAS )

) SS
CITY OF KANSAS CITY )

The Board of Public Utilities of Kansas City, Kansas (aka BPU, We, Us, Our) met in
Work Session on Wednesday, March 5, 2025 at 5:00 PM. The following Board Members
were present: David Haley, President; Rose Mulvany Henry, Vice President; Brett Parker,
Secretary; Mary Gonzales, Stevie A. Wakes Sr., and Thomas Groneman.

Also present: Jeremy Ash, General Manager; Angela Lawson, Acting Chief Counsel;
and Rick Hardman, IT Project Manager.

A video of this meeting is on file at the Board of Public Utilities and can be found on
the BPU website, www.bpu.com.

Mr. Haley called the meeting to order at 5:00 PM.
Roll call was taken and all Board members were present.

Item #3 —Approval of Agsenda

A motion was made to approve the Agenda, by Ms. Mulvany Henry, seconded by Mr.
Groneman, and unanimously carried.

Item #4 — Board Update/GM Update

Mr. Wakes attended the Unified Government (UG) Standing Committee — Economic
Development & Finance meeting and mentioned a proposed low-income housing tax credit
(LIHTC) development near 72" and State Avenue that was not passed by the committee.

Mr. Ash summarized attending the 2025 Legislative Rally held in Washington DC
and said that discussion focused on grant funds and the benefit of those dollars to our

community.

Item #5 — Policy Committee Update

The Policy Committee proposed items regarding Board meeting structure for further
discussion. Items included:

- Moving to one Regular Session meeting, held on the first Wednesday of the
month, and to allow for Work Sessions or other necessary meetings to be
conducted on the third Wednesday of the month.

Page 1 of 2



WORK SESSION MINUTES — WEDNESDAY, MARCH 5, 2025

STATE OF KANSAS )
) SS
CITY OF KANSAS CITY )

- Adding language to the Board Rules of Procedure to adopt a consent agenda and
to include eligible items as agreed upon by the Board.

- Making changes to the current Public Comments sections format of the Regular
Session meeting.

Item #6 — Adjourn

A motion was made to adjourn the Work Session at 5:58 PM, by Mr. Groneman,
seconded by Mr. Wakes, and unanimously carried.

ATTEST: APPROVED:

Secretary President

Page 2 of 2



TOPIC 1: Moving to 1 Regular Session Per Month (Work Sessions/Committee Meetings conducted on
the other Wednesday)

Section 1:

The Regular Session Meeting of the elected Board shall be on the third Wednesday of each month of the
year, or as otherwise properly noticed, at the hour of 6:00 p.m. in the Board Room of the Board of Public
Utilities located at 540 Minnesota Avenue. Such meetings shall be available to the public via telephone
or web-based technology. All meetings of the Board shall be subject to the Kansas Open Meetings Act.
Any regular meeting falling upon a legal holiday shall be rescheduled to another day, and the General
Manager shall give notice thereof in compliance with the Kansas Open Meetings Act.

The Work Session Meeting of the elected Board shall be conducted on the first Wednesday of each
month of the year, or as otherwise properly noticed. Such Work Session Meeting shall be conducted at
the time and location identified in the public notice. Such meetings shall be available to the public via
telephone or web-based technology. All meetings of the Board shall be subject to the Kansas Open
Meetings Act. Any regular meeting falling upon a legal holiday shall be rescheduled to another day, and
the General Manager shall give notice thereof in compliance with the Kansas Open Meetings Act.

Questions for the Board:

Should we try to identify the purpose of each meeting?

TOPIC 2: Consent Agenda

Policy Committee Proposal:
The consent agenda shall be prepared by the Board President and the General Manager:

a. Items placed on the consent agenda are considered to be routine and not requiring full Board
discussion which shall include, but not be limited to: BPU Team appointments to various
external boards; approval of Work Session and Regular Session Meeting Minutes; approval of
Board Member travel; minor, non-substantive policy modifications; [NOTE: If we include
financials in this list, the Board Finance Committee would need to meet to review on a
regular basis]

b. Anyitem unanimously recommended by a Board Committee shall be placed on the consent
agenda as well as any other routine items as determined by the Board President and the
General Manager; and

c.  Any item may be removed from the consent agenda at the request of one Board Member
present or at the request of the General Manager.



TOPIC 3: Public Comment Section of the Regular Session iVieetings

Currently, Public Comment Section at the beginning of the meeting (3 minutes) and after the Agenda
[tems (3 minutes).

Policy Committee Proposal: Move back to 1 Public Comment Section at the end of the Agenda Items (5
minutes for comments — all questions should be directed to GM and BPU Team). However, modify the
Sign In Sheet to accommodate for BPU customers with a need to discuss their issue with a BPU Team
Member (e.g. billing issues, etc.)



Approval of Minutes
Regular Session 3-5-2025
Agenda [tem #V



REGULAR SESSION -WEDNESDAY, MARCH 5, 2025

STATE OF KANSAS )
) SS
CITY OF KANSAS CITY)

The Board of Public Utilities of Kansas City, Kansas (aka BPU, We, Us, Our) met in
Regular Session on Wednesday, March 5, 2025 at 6:00 PM. The following Board Members
were present: David Haley, President; Rose Mulvany Henry, Vice President; Brett Parker,
Secretary; Mary Gonzales, Stevie A. Wakes Sr., and Thomas Groneman.

Also present: Jeremy Ash, General Manager; Angela Lawson, Acting Chief Counsel;
Andrew Ferris, Chief Financial Officer; Abbey Frye, Chief Administrative Officer; Darrin
McNew, Executive Director Electric Operations; Gabriela Freeman, Director Customer Care;
Douglas Bowen, Director Electric Production Operations/Maintenance; Steve Green,
Executive Director Water Operations; Amber Oetting; Director Communications &
Marketing; Dennis Dumovich, Director of Human Resources; Steve Hargis, Supervisor Water
Operations; and Rick Hardman, IT Project Manager.

A video of this meeting is on file at the Board of Public Utilities and can be found on
the BPU website, www.bpu.com.

Mr. Haley called the Board meeting to order at 6:03 PM. He welcomed all that were
listening to or viewing the meeting. He informed all that the meeting was being recorded
including video and audio. During the visitor comments section, those who attended in person,
wishing to comment, should use the sign-up sheet at the entry and provide their name and
address. In addition, there would be a public comments section after the General
Manager/Staff Reports. During this section, the public could comment on the items presented
in the General Manager/Staff Reports section that evening. Both visitor and public comments
were limited to three minutes and should be addressed to the Board. Members of the public
who wished to speak to the Board using Zoom needed to use the raise hand feature at the
bottom of the application or window to signal that they wish to address the board during the
public comment section. Members of the public connected by phone only, needed to press *9
to indicate they wished to address the Board in the visitor and public comment sections. No
confidential information should be shared, including, account information. Staff would not
provide individual account information during an open meeting. As always, the public could
also email or call the BPU with any concerns. He informed all participants to act respectfully
to each other; personal attacks or accusations would not be tolerated. All concerns would be
directed to the Board only, they would then determine staff involvement. If side discussion
was necessary, it was to be conducted outside of the Board room to avoid interfering with
presenters or other attendees. If any rules are breached during this meeting, the attendee was
subject to removal.

Mr. Haley introduced himself and the other Board members along with the General Manager,
and Legal Counsel.
Page 1 of 3



REGULAR SESSION -WEDNESDAY, MARCH 5, 2025

STATE OF KANSAS )

) SS

CITY OF KANSAS CITY)

Roll call was taken and all Board members were present.

Item #3 — Approval of Agenda

A motion was made to approve the Agenda, by Mr. Parker, seconded by Mr. Wakes,

and unanimously carried.

Item #4— Approval of the Minutes of the Regular Session of February 19, 2025

A motion was made to amend and approve the minutes, to strike “in his absence” from

paragraph one, by Mr. Groneman, seconded by Mr. Wakes, and unanimously carried.

Item #5— Visitors Comments

There were no visitors wishing to speak.

Item #6— General Manager / Team Reports

ii.

Customer Care Update: Ms. Abbey Frye, Chief Administrative Officer, gave the
Board an update on various 2024 accomplishments, introduced the ICARE values, and
reviewed upcoming improvements for Customer Care. She announced the promotion
of Ms. Gabriela Freeman to Director of Customer Care and explained how they
planned to collaborate to improve the overall customer experience. (See attached
PowerPoint.)

Ms. Frye responded to questions and comments from the Board.

Miscellaneous Comments: Mr. Ash acknowledged the Electric and Water Operation
teams for their work during the recent weather event. He said BPU only had five tree
tickets turned in which was a testament to the commitment and funding provided to the
vegetation management program.

Item #7— Public Comments on Agenda Items

There were no visitors wishing to speak.

Page 2 of 3



REGULAR SESSION —-WEDNESDAY, MARCH 5, 2025
STATE OF KANSAS )

) SS
CITY OF KANSAS CITY)

Item #8— Board Comments

Ms. Mulvany Henry thanked Ms. Frye for her presentation and her positive impact to
BPU, thanked the Electric and Water Operations teams for their dedication and work during
the storm events, and apologized to fellow Board member regarding the Work Session start
time.

Ms. Gonzales welcomed Ms. Freeman into her new role, thanked Ms. Frye for her
presentation, and thanked staff who responded during the weather event.

Mr. Parker echoed previous comments and thanked the presenters, congratulated Ms.
Freeman on her new role, and thanked those who worked through the blizzard conditions.

Mr. Wakes thanked Mr. Frye and Ms. Freeman for their work and presentation, and
thanked the crews who worked during the weather event.

Mr. Groneman thanked the Water and Electric crews for working through the weather
conditions, congratulated Ms. Freeman on her new position, and thanked Ms. Frye for her
presentation.

Mr. Haley thanked Ms. Frye for her presentation, congratulated Ms. Freeman on her
new role, and said he was pleased with the minimal number of outages experienced during the
recent weather events. He said he looked forward to streamlining the Board meeting structure
and policies moving forward.

Item 9 — Adjourn

At 6:37 PM a motion to adjourn was made by Mr. Parker, seconded by Mr. Wakes, and
unanimously carried.

ATTEST: APPROVED:

Secretary President

Page 3 of 3






























General Manage/Staff Reports
Agenda Item #VII




















































































9¢

041D
SLLIDJ malpuy

. i\ V\Q
Ly'¢ L6V or°¢ GZOT/PRUIqUIOD GTOT/MR¥BA (£0T/OMI09[H - 93BIOA0D)
97y '886°LY LOT°065°S 8L£°899 vt $ AjLied - 9D1AI0S 199(] fenuuy WNWIXBIA]
17°¢ S0°¢ 60°€ 970T7/PAUIqQUIOD)  970T/HRIBM 6Z07/21M199]H - 98RISA0D)
870°9¢8°1S 8EYIT1°6 9¢0°088‘vv $ 199(] [BI0 ], - 991AJ9S 199  [enuUY WNWIXEA]
L9T 657991 $81°89.°LT €8¥°069°8¢€1 $ SONUIAY ION.
(TSLSY6v1T) (£66'166°0€) (65L°056°€81) sosuadxy souruajuIR|y pue Sunerad(
610°50¥°18¢€ LLLE9L ]S T Iv9TTE $ SONUOAIY

CC0C TE ATenuef  TZOC I¢ Alenuel  GZ0g 'I¢ Adenuep
Surpug SYUON ¢ Sulpug SUON Z|  Suipug SYIUO 71
paulquon) I M O11109]H

“sasuadxy aourULIUIRI puE UoNeIed() SSO ‘WeISAS AT Y} JO SONUIAY Sy} SUBSUI  SINUIAY 19N,

-1931enb
Tepus|ed yons yim Jurpus porad YIuow sA[om) oY) 10J WwaIsAS A1) AY) JO SONUSASY 19N Y1 918[NI[BD 0 pannbalr st saniun d1qnd Jo pieog
oY) 2IMUSpU] 1SN, PIJeISaY puE PaPUSUIY puodSS 9y Ul paulfep st samuapuy [euswsjddng Aue pue 9107 ‘g JoqUIdA(] JO SB AN ‘$ 107 ‘1
aunyf JO Se psjep “2IMuspu] ISni], paIeIsay pue papustry puodag oY) Ul paulyep se ‘saxmuapuy [ejuswalddng ayj jo sjuouwalinbol oy} 03 SuIpIoddY

G707 Arenuef
Papuy YIUO Y], 104
SOTHI) dTqnd Jo preoq
9} I0J sanuaA 19N JO
uone[noe)) Jo AedII))



LT

"sanuaAal Sunelodo-uot SNOSUR[[IOSIW 1910 PUB STUDWHSIAUL

uo jsarejul ‘fesodsip yse ‘[ejuai JusuIyorNe 9]0d/10M0] ‘S99) J9UUOISIP/OdUUOD ‘SJUNOOSIP PAYIa)io] :SOPNIOUL IOYIO0 pue JWooul Jsatau)  (7)

swoou! Suieiado-uou 1oyjo pue uondsjoad oy ‘sepuoyine oiqnd ‘Sunysiy AemySy :sepnjoul sejes OO ([)  :SION

"S9NUdAAI AIRUIPIORIIXS apn[oul jou [[eys pue Aorjod soueimnsul ojeridoidde ue Aq pa1oaod weIsAS Af1in oyl Aq paLnout ssoj

Aue 01 19adsai yym pred speasold apnjour jou [[eys wua) yons Inq ‘spaesold puog WOl paALIep pun, UOHONISUOD) ay) Ul satuow asoyy) 1deoxs (y] 7 ‘euny payep

ISDILL, JO 2IMUSPU] 3Y3) UIaIaY PaYSI[qe)sa spun,j ay) Jo AUe Uj SSIUOW JO JUSWISIAUL 9} WOLJ POALISP SWIOOU] {[€ SapN[oul pue ‘WiaisAS AJjun yons jo syonpolrd

pUE SIDIAISS JO 3SN puE JjeS BY) WOY pue WaIsAS AN 9y 0y 10adsar yum NJd 2y Aq pasodurr saSieys pue sajer Suipnpour ‘wesAg A 2y woy ndg

3} AQ PaAladal SINUIASI [{ SIPN[OUI pUE ‘dSIMIdYI0 Jo Wa)SAS AN oU) 0) sjusuLIafeq Jo sitedal ‘sjuawoBie|us ‘SUOISUSIXe WOL SUINSAL Jayloym J02Io)

ued 1aypo 10 1sfo1d Aue o weisAg Ajnn oy Jo jonuod pue uonerado Gustuedeurur oy} Woy NJ¢ Yl Aq PIALISP SNUSASI pUR JLWIOOUI |2 UBSW _ SONUIAY,,

(12 SV.1) usunsnlpe uoneriouosar (DHyH) Jusuodwo)) a1y ASIou 10] PaLIgjap aNUIAY,

610°50¥°18¢ LLL*€9L'8S w1y Ces $

(PLSTH9Y) - (PLSTHIY)

8 v09°S1 921°9¢¥°T 91L'891°¢1
GSL69€°8E SLL8L6 S 086°06€°C¢

6v0°L6L V1 6L1°68€°1 0L8‘TI¥ El

050966 108°2¢9 6v2°€9¢

LTLTOT T 679018 860°C6T°11
$$7°922°9¢ LY1°8L9°9 LO1'8¥S 61

959°66¢ T¢I SLS9GLET 180°66S LI1
092665911 SHSS80°LT C1,°605°68 $
WNON JM >._m::m_. mNON JM >.:w::m_. mNON ,_M >.§::m_.
Burpug syuoN 71 Buipug syIuon 71 Buipug syIuoIN 71

vo:BEOU ._o..:ma omboo_m

SHOANAIAHY

[ QX

SanuoaAdY [vI0],
s3utuley pun, UOIONIISUOY) SS9
+dd/19N,] - SNUDADY palIgje]
9ouUBNSS| JO 1500 puog

() 1oy pue owooU] JSaIU]
SoXe], JO naI uf wuswked

S9|eS 9[BS9|OYA

(1) sefes Ioyno

sfooyoS

Sajes Jernsnpuy

S9[eg [BI0IWILUOY)

S9[eS [enUAPISOY

sonuaAdy ANl 210



14

‘Nd€ 2 Aq pazijendes a1e yorym ‘[ong pue saxe) Juipnjoui ‘stani Kpadord yons pue ‘weisAg Aijun oy jo sonsadord Kue jo uonisodsip

910 JO UONIEN]BAI! “UOHEDIJISSEIDAI “JUSWIUOPURGE “OfBS SU) ‘WO SJUSWIINLI 10 ‘o) SyuowaAoldwi 10 SUOISUXD ‘SjusuLIaneq ‘sjustusoejdar ‘suonippe jeides 0] 10jaloy) opew sa31eys 10 ‘§1509

‘NdF 9 10 A 2y Jo SSAUPAGapUt IdY0 10 papuoq Jo uopeziowe 1o [edounid yo juswied sy 10j sadreyd pue saieyo jsatoiur ‘sojqiSueiur Jo uoneziHoWwe Swa)l osuadxa SuiLNgo0 Ajusnbayur
10 Tensnun Ajjeiaiew 10 ATBUIPIORIIXD “10J2191) SIAISSAI 10 SaIed 90US2]0sqo 10 uoneldadap ‘soxe) Jo nay| ui sjustiAed apnjour jou op sasuadxg] aotruAIURIA pue uonesad( -sajdiound Supunosoe
pajdoooe Ajjerousd yim 2ouspI0ode uy sasuadxy soueuauiey pue Suneisd() aq 0) paIsPISUOd AIe YOIYA SISO Ioylo AUB pUB IOpUNaIay 92ISMIL By Jo asoy) Suipnpour “Kreronpyy Aue jo sosuadxo
pue s29j oy ‘sajdiounid Zununoooe paydaooe Ajjeiousd topun wNsAS AN oy 03 aqeaofje Azadoid Juaixa oy 0) ‘meT Aq 1o A1) o) Jo ssueuipIo Aq dg oy Aq pred aq o) paimbal suone3iqo
10 sasuadxd juarno Aue 9d1A108 uoIssisuRy) pue samod paseyoind Jo 1500 a1 SIS00 a0y ‘saBIeyd [RIUAWLIA0S 1a10 {Foasay) noy ul sjuswiked Suipnjoul 10U Jnq) SOXE) ‘S0IAILS jeOIUYD?) pue
3unmsuoo [eUonIPPE JO JS02 Ay} pue sasuadxa pue so9] K10siape [eroueuy pue Jununosoe ‘SuuosuiFus qedo| ‘swniwaid soueinsul ‘sasuadxs JusAINRI pue uotsuad ‘uoneziendsoy ey ssokojduo
‘soem pue soLie[es ‘sjuswooe[dor pue sjemauat ‘siredar L1eurplo Jo 1500 oy jo juswAked oty 10§ AIessaoou Asuowr jje Sugpnjour ‘paiinbay AdyeIpawl USY) 10U ST yOIYM JO JustuAed oy Sy yons

10] 9pIse 195 2 0] panbay Ajqeuoseal Louow Jo sjunowe ‘o) pajtul] Jou Ing ‘Furpnjour ‘weisAg AN 241 Oesado pue urgjurew o) A1eSS05U SpUNJ S} SUBSW | sasuadxF ouBULUIR pue uonesdd(,,

"SPUOg] SNUIADY FUIPULISING UO dSUDAND 1S9I0IUT SIPNOXT 4

TSLSHE' 1T £66°766°0€ 65L°056 €81 $ sasuadxy adueUAUIRIA %9 SunesadQ
(55L°69€°8¢) (SLL'8L6'S) (086°06£°2¢) $IXE JO NAI] U] jusliAe 5597
(Z90° 1L+ v¥) (LTS'8LES) (5£5°260°9¢) UonEZHIOWY puy uoljerooids :ssoT
695°08L°L6T S6TTSESY PLTPEP TST $ Sasuadxq Sunerdo
SZ0T 1€ Atentef ST0T T¢ Arentef $Z0T "T¢ Atenuef
Buipug syiuo 1 Buipug sUo 71 Buipug syjuoN 1
pauIquio)) e M oL1091g

SASNAIXH HONVNAILNIVIN ANV SNOILVIAdO

7 M



6¢

£00-00T-20 Ad1{0d 3UI|3pIND |BIDUBUIY NdE U] Ui PAYSIGRISa SB SpUNy 3AI9S3. 3Y3 puny Ajjny 03 papasu Junowe 3yl s1uasaidal aduejeq ysed pajdLisaIun syl

(SSTE9T'S) $ (zs2'T1ET) $ (£06758°¢) $ SJUBWISIAU| PUB YseD P3SN
T6L'VTR'ETT S TS6°4¥9°9C S . T¥8'99z7'L8 S SUOIIILIS3Y R10]
000°007 00006 000°0TT pung 1uawdo|anag 21wouod3
858CT0LE LY AZA4 P6£'886VE JusWaainbay 3A1asaY Sunesado ululewsy
998'588°CT 998'588°CT - Juswdojanaq WaisAs
000'v0T’S 000649 000°SZY'y $20¢ 10§ 3AIISDY UOIIINIISUOD Fuio3uQD
000°005'T 000°0ST 000'0S€°T pung Asuagiaw3 pue juswaaoiduwy
£L2°95T'6 - £€L2'95T6 pun4 uonezijiqels aley
0000629 0000629 - pund uondanpay 193Q
889'8ET'VT PES9T8C $ PST2T 1 pund 321A495 1999
000°0008 000°000°8 3N153Y DY3
000°00T'T 000°0Z¢ 000088 dwo) ,SI3HI0M- 9AI3SIY BduURINSU| 135
000°000°T 000°00¢ 000008 Aijiqer a1qnd - 3A18saY JdUBINSU| 135
LOT'LTY'L S L80°T6T'T S 070'SET9 S ysodsg J3woisn)

SIUBWISBAUY PUB YSeD JO SUOHIDLIIS3Y

LEYTSL'S0T 3 669°9€€°ST S 8E6'VTY'ER 3 ST/TE/T JO Se SIUBUNSAU} puE yseD
(988'TTT'vY) {PpT'vSTY) (zvL’L90°0Y) 3eQ 01 e3A SjuswAed yse)
YrT'Sy8'9t 860°€E0’S 90TTI8TY 9)eQ 03 Jed4 s3d1adayY ysed
6L€'82T°90T S SYL'LSYbT 3 ¥E9°0L9°T8 S SZ/T0/10J0 Sy  sjudwisaaul pue ysed Jujuuidag
PouIquic] THEM RJEEEIE]
GZO¢ "TE Menugy 20T "T€ ATenuer TZ0C 'TE Aaenuet

SINIWLSIANI ANV HSVD
SAILINLN JIT9Nd 40 AYVOQg ALID SYSNVH









EXCERPT OF BYLAWS OF KANSAS MUNICPAL ENERGY AGENCY
ARTICLE V
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Section 5.1. Selection of Directors. The property and business of the Agency shall be managed by the Board of
Directors of the Agency. The Board of Directors shall consist of two (2) Directors for each Member, provided that there
shall be not less than seven (7) Directors. The Directors shall be selected by the governing bodies of the Members. In the
event that the number of Members is less than seven (7), each Member shall be represented by the number of Directors
which would constitute a Board of Directors of not less than seven (7) Members, provided that each Member shall select
the same number of Directors. Each Member must designate the two (2) Directors as “Director-1” and “Director-2".

The term of each Director shall be for a period of two (2) years except that the initial term of a number equal to
one half of the Directors, comprised of those individuals designated as Director-2, shall be selected to a term of one (1)
year. Any Director selected by a Member may be removed at any time by the Member selecting the Director.
Each Director so selected shall (a) reside within the territory served by the electric utility of the selecting Member;
or (b) be an employee of the selecting Member. Each Director shall meet all other requirements of the Act and the
Agreement. Any such selection (other than a replacement selection) shall occur prior to the annual meeting of the
Agency. Written evidence of selection shall be forwarded by the City Clerk or other authorized official of the Member
to the Agency in writing prior to the annual meeting. Each Director shall continue in office until a successor is selected
in accordance with this Article V.

Section 5.2. Voting Powers. Each Member shall be entitled to one Director vote on the Board of Directors which
shall be equal to the vote of every other Member. Such vote shall be cast on behalf of the Member by Director-1 of such
Member, if present; if such Director-1 is not present then by Director-2. Other than actions required in Article XiI hereof,
all actions of the Board of Directors shall be made upon affirmative vote of a majority of the Directors entitled to vote and
voting on such action.

Section 5.3. Compensation. Except as may be specifically authorized by the Board of Directors, no Director
shall receive payment from the Agency for any time spent in attending meetings of the Board of Directors or
otherwise conducting business of the Agency. To the extent that funds are available, the Board of Directors, the
Executive Committee, or the General Manager may authorize payment of expenses for travel in connection with the
business of the Agency for other than meetings of the Board of Directors pursuant to the Act.

Section 5.4. Vacancies. In the event of a vacancy on the Board of Directors the appropriate Member shall select
an individual to fill such vacancy for the remainder of the term in accordance with the same procedure as set forth for
the selection of the initial Director. Written evidence of selection shall be provided to the Agency before voting
privileges will take effect.

Section 5.5. Removal or Resignation. A Director may be removed only by the governing body of the
Member selecting such Director. Any Director may resign by providing notice to the governing body of the Member the
Director represents. The governing body shall certify to the Agency such removal or resignation of a Director.

Section 5.6. Successor Director. Upon removal or resignation of a Director, a successor Director will be selected
by the governing body in the same manner as the original Director was selected, and the successor Director will
be certified by the governing body to the Agency in the same manner as the original Director was certified. The
successor Director shall serve for the remainder of the unexpired term of the original Director, subject to the rights of the
governing body and such successor Director under Section 5.5 of these Bylaws.

Section 5.7. Alternates. Each Member shall designate an Alternate or Alternates for the Director in the same
manner as the Directors are designated. In the event any Director is unable to attend a meeting, any duly
appointed Alternate may substitute at the meeting of the Board of Directors for such Director. The Member shall provide
the Agency with written notification of the selection of such Alternate or Alternates. In the event neither Director
designated by the Member is present, the Alternate may vote on behalf of such Member unless the governing body
of the Member has specifically prohibited the Alternate from voting on the Member’s behalf. If more than one Alternate
is designated by the Member, the governing body shall specify in its designation the order in which the Alternates shall
have voting rights on behalf of the Member.

Adopted by the Board of Directors July 3, 2019



RESOLUTION NO. 5311

RESOLUTION BY THE KANSAS CITY BOARD OF PUBLIC UTILITIES, AN
ADMINISTRATIVE AGENCY OF THE UNIFIED GOVERNMENT OF WYANDOTTE
COUNTY/ KANSAS CITY, KANSAS REVISING AND REPLACING THE BOARD
RULES OF PROCEDURES.

WHEREAS, the elected Board has previously adopted Board Rules of Procedures; and

WHEREAS, after elected Board discussion of said Board Rules of Procedure, the
elected Board wishes to make updates to said policies; and

WHEREAS, the updated Board Rules of Procedure are attached hereto;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED AND ORDAINED BY THE
KANSAS CITY BOARD OF PUBLIC UTILITIES:

That the Kansas City Board of Public Utilities hereby replaces the previous Board Rules
of Procedure in its entirety and replaces it with the updated Board Rules of Procedure attached
hereto. The Board Rules of Procedure will be effective March 24, 2025.

ADOPTED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE KANSAS CITY BOARD OF
PUBLIC UTILITIES THIS 19™ DAY OF MARCH, 2025.

By:
David Haley, Board President

Attest:

Brett Parker, Board Secretary

Approved as to form:



1.1

1.2

1.3

Rule 1
Meetings

Regular Meetings

The regular session meeting of the elected Board shall be on the first Wednesday of
each month of the year, or as otherwise properly noticed, at the hour of 6:00 p.m. in
the Board Room of the Board of Public Utilities located at 540 Minnesota Avenue.
The third Wednesday of each month shall be reserved for the elected Board to
conduct work session meetings, elected Board committee meetings, executive
session meetings, an additional regular session meeting, or any other such meeting
that is required to conduct the business of the utility.

Such meetings shall be available to the public via telephone or web-based technology.
All meetings of the elected Board shall be subject to the Kansas Open Meetings Act.
Any regular meeting falling upon a legal holiday, or needs to be rescheduled for any
unforeseen reason, shall be rescheduled to another day, and the General Manager shall
give notice thereof in compliance with the Kansas Open Meetings Act.

An alternative date for the regular session meetings of the elected Board, other than
the first and third Wednesday of each month of the year, may be established by a vote
of four (4) or more Elected Board Members, and proper notice thereof shall be
provided in accordance with the Kansas Open Meetings Act.

Elected Board Members may participate in any regular session meeting or special
session meeting of the elected Board via telephone or web-based technology, except
for the closed portion of an executive session meeting, and such elected Board
Member has provided advance notice to the President and General Manager.

Special Meetings

Special session meetings may be called by the General Manager, the President or by
a vote of four (4) members of the elected Board. A written notice of such meeting
shall be prepared and given to the General Manager and each elected Board Member
via hand delivery or electronic mail, at least twenty-four (24) hours before such
meeting, unless such notice is not practicable under the circumstances. The notice
shall specify the date, time and place of the special meeting and the business to be
transacted. No other business, other than as recited in the notice, shall be transacted at
such special session meeting.

The General Manager shall be responsible to give notice of any special session
meeting in compliance with the Kansas Open Meetings Act.

Closed Meetings or Sessions

All meetings of the elected Board shall be open to the public; provided, however, the
elected Board may hold meetings where a portion of the meeting is closed to the public
as provided for in the Kansas Open Meetings Act.



2.1

2.2

3.1

No Member of the elected Board, employee of the BPU, or any other person shall
disclose to any other person the content or substance of the closed portion of any
meeting except as authorized by a consensus of the elected Board.

It is the policy of the Board of Public Utilities that no public discussion shall be
permitted on any personnel matter brought before the elected Board which refers or
relates to any individually identifiable employee in the employ of the Board of Public
Utilities. Provided, however, that the elected Board and its advisors may discuss such
personnel matters in a regularly convened executive session. An elected Board
Member is not permitted to attend or participate in a closed portion of an executive
session meeting remotely via telephone or web-based technology unless four (4) or
more of the Elected Board Members vote to suspend the rules to permit such remote
attendance.

It is further the policy of the Board of Public Ultilities to enforce this policy stringently.

Rule 2
Quorum

Definition

A quorum for the transaction of business shall consist of four (4) elected Board
Members. An elected Board Member may be present by telephone or by web-based
technology, except during an executive session.

If no quorum is present and the elected Board Members present desire to request the
attendance of absent Board Members, they themselves, or by their agents, may attempt
to communicate the call to the session personally to the absentees.

Rescheduling of Meeting Due to Lack of Quorum

Whenever it appears that a quorum will not be present for an upcoming Board
meeting, the elected Board may reschedule such meeting by establishing a Special
Meeting in accordance with the procedures outlined in Section 1.2 above.

Rule 3
Presiding Officers

Election of Officers

The elected Board shall elect, from its membership at the first meeting in February
of each year, a President, a Vice-President and shall appoint a Secretary. Except in
the case of a vacancy on the elected Board, four (4) affirmative votes shall be
required to elect each officer. Terms of officers shall be limited to not more than
two (2) consecutive one (1) year terms in the same office; however, in the event no
nominee receives four (4) affirmative votes, the current office holder shall remain in
office for successive one (1) year terms until a nominee receives the requisite
number of votes at the election held at the second regular meeting in January, or the
next scheduled regular meeting thereafter.

2



3.2

3.3

5.1

Definition

Whenever the term “Presiding Officer” 'is used in these Rules, it shall mean the Board
President, and if the President is absent, it shall apply equally to the Vice-President,
and if the Vice-President is also absent, to the Secretary.

Application

The President shall preside at all meetings of the elected Board.
During the absence of the President, the Vice-President shall preside at the meetings.

In the absence of the President and the Vice-President, the General Manager shall call
the Board to order, whereupon a temporary Presiding Officer shall be elected by the
majority vote of the elected Board Members present as their first order of business.
Upon the arrival of the President or the Vice-President, the temporary Presiding
Officer shall relinquish the chair at the conclusion of the item of business before the
Board.

Rule 4
Committees & Meetings with External Stakeholders

The President may recommend to the elected Board such committees of the elected
Board as may be necessary to study various issues facing the elected Board. The
President and elected Board Members shall collaboratively determine which elected
Board Members participate in which committees. Permanent committees may include
those deemed necessary by the President or by an affirmative vote of the elected
Board. Committees shall be responsible for selecting a chairperson, and for
determining meeting schedules and agendas.

Elected Board Members shall have the opportunity to be involved in meetings with
large industrial and commercial customers, and to meet with intervenors.

Rule 5
Duties

Presiding Officer

The Presiding Officer may move or second an item, debate and vote and shall not be
deprived of any of the rights and privileges of an elected Board Member. The
Presiding Officer or such person as he or she may designate may verbally summarize
the item to be voted upon immediately after it has been moved and seconded and may
restate each question immediately prior to calling for the vote. Following the vote, the
Presiding Officer or designee shall announce whether the question carried or was
defeated. The Presiding Officer shall maintain order and decorum at all meetings. He
or she shall decide all questions of order and procedure, subject, however, to the right
of appeal to the elected Board, in which event an affirmative vote of four (4) elected
Board Members shall determine conclusively such question of order or procedure.



5.2

5.3

5.4

6.1

Members

Elected Board Members shall preserve order and decorum. Every elected Board
Member wishing to speak shall address the chair and upon recognition by the
Presiding Officer shall be permitted to speak. Every member shall confine comments
to the question under debate and will refrain from impugning the motives of any other
Member's argument or vote. An elected Board Member once recognized shall not be
interrupted while speaking unless a point of order is raised by another Member or
unless the speaker chooses to yield to questions from another Member or unless he or
she is called to order by the Presiding Officer.

A Member, when called to order upon a point of order (Section 7.7) by the Presiding
Officer, shall thereupon discontinue speaking and the order or ruling of the Presiding
Officer shall be binding and conclusive, subject only to the right of appeal.

Elected Board Members shall notify the Board President or the General Manager at
least twenty-four hours in advance, whenever possible, of their intention to be absent.

BPU Employees

Employees of the BPU shall observe the same rules of procedure and decorum
applicable to elected Board Members. Any BPU employee desiring to address the
elected Board shall be recognized by the Presiding Officer, shall state his or her name
for the record and shall limit his or her remarks to the matter under discussion.

Individual employees of the BPU will not be allowed to make presentations before
the elected Board regarding personnel matters. All personnel matters must be handled
through the proper channels in accordance with BPU policy and established grievance
procedures.

Members of the Public

Members of the public attending elected Board meetings shall also observe the same
rules of propriety, decorum and good conduct applicable to elected Members of the
Board. Members of the public desiring to address the elected Board shall follow the
procedure set forth in Section 7.2.

Rule 6
Agenda

Presentation of Agenda Items

In order to facilitate the orderly conduct of business, a regular agenda, and if
applicable a consent agenda, shall be prepared for each regular session meeting or
other meeting identified in these rules.

Subject to these rules, items of business may be placed on a regular session meeting
agenda by any elected Board Member or the General Manager.

An agenda item or other information shall be presented to the General Manager’s
office no later than 5:00 p.m. on the Thursday preceding the elected Board meeting so



6.2

6.3

that the information may be included as part of the regular agenda which will be
distributed to the Members on Friday afternoon preceding the meeting.

Unless not practicable under the circumstances, elected Board Members shall receive
available information and supporting documentation at least 48 hours in advance of a
meeting of the elected Board. If such information is available but not provided to
elected Board Members reasonably in advance of the elected Board meeting, no vote
shall be permissible except in the form of a motion to suspend these rules.

Consent Agenda

The consent agenda shall be prepared by the Board President and the General
Manager:

(D Items placed on the consent agenda are considered to be routine and not
requiring full elected Board discussion which shall include, but not be
limited to: Board of Public Utilities employee appointments to various
external boards; approval of work session and regular session meeting
minutes; monthly financial reports, but only to the extent the elected Board
Finance Policy Committee is meeting on a regular basis; approval of elected
Board Member travel if a travel request form has been executed by the
requesting Board Member by the deadline; minor, non-substantive policy
modifications; or similar items.

(2) Any item unanimously recommended by a Board Committee shall be placed
on the consent agenda unless the motion approving said item included
language disapproving of its placement on the consent agenda, as well as
any other routine items as determined by the Board President and the
General Manager; and

3) Any item may be removed from the consent agenda at the request of one
Board Member present or at the request of the General Manager.

Order of Business

At any work session meeting of the elected Board Members, unless altered by
affirmative vote of the elected Board, the elected Board shall proceed to transact the
business before it in the following order:

(1) Call to order;

(2) Approval of agenda;
(3) Agenda items; and,
(4) Adjournment.

At any regular session meeting, unless altered by affirmative vote of the elected
Board, the elected Board shall proceed to transact the business before it in the
following order:

(1) Call to order;
(2) Approval of regular agenda;
(3) Approval of consent agenda;



7.1

7.2

(4) Agenda items;
. Substantive agenda items;

. Visitor comments: public comments on substantive agenda items or
other Board of Public Utilities-related comments;
. Miscellaneous comments from the General Manager/elected Board

Member comments; and,
(5) Adjournment.

Rule 7
Conducting Business

Introduction and Discussion of Agenda Items

All agenda items shall be introduced at the meetings by the General Manager. The
Presiding Officer shall call upon the General Manager to perform this duty.

The Presiding Officer shall allow each elected Board Member to speak with regard to
each agenda item. No elected Board Member shall speak more than five (5)
consecutive minutes on any one agenda item, except by unanimous consent, unless
the nature of the agenda time results in interactive dialogue between the elected Board
Member and a BPU employee or agent of the utility, in which case, such elected Board
Member may conduct such dialogue for a reasonable period of time. An elected Board
Member shall not speak more than once on each topic until every other Member who
so desires shall have had the opportunity to speak.

Visitor Comment Procedure
A. Individual

It is the policy of the elected Board to permit comments by members of the public at
regular session meetings in accordance with this Section. Each person desiring to
address the elected Board shall sign in on the visitor log with the Recording Secretary.
Any visitor that needs to obtain specific assistance from a BPU staff member related
to his or her account may indicate that on the visitor log and that visitor may conduct
such business with the BPU staff member in parallel with the regular session meeting
(or special session meeting, as applicable) and not during such meeting. All visitors
choosing to address the elected Board shall be introduced at the meeting by the
General Manager. No person shall address the elected Board without first securing the
recognition of the Presiding Officer.

In the visitor comment section at a regular session meeting following the substantive
agenda items, or at the designated time at a special session meeting, when called upon,
a visitor shall state his or her name and address for the record, state the subject, state
whom he or she is representing if he or she represents an organization or other persons,
and unless further time is granted upon motion, shall limit his or her remarks to five
(5) minutes. No questions shall be asked of a member of the BPU staff without
obtaining permission of the Presiding Officer.

The elected Board may permit comments by members of the public at a special session
meeting and, if permitted, shall follow the procedure outlined herein, unless an



7.3

7.4

alternative procedure is established by the elected Board for such special session
meeting.

B. Group

In order to expedite elected Board business and to avoid repetitious presentations
and/or comments, whenever any group of persons wishes to address the elected Board
on the same subject matter, it shall be in order for the Presiding Officer to require that
a spokesperson be chosen from the group to address the elected Board. If additional
matters are to be presented by any other members of the group, the Presiding Officer
may limit the number of such persons and limit the presentation to information not
already presented by the group spokesperson, unless overruled by a majority of the
elected Board Members.

Groups of persons shall be limited to a total presentation period of ten (10) minutes.
The Presiding Officer shall first call for representatives of groups in favor of the matter
under consideration and then for those groups in opposition to the matter under
consideration. Further time may be granted by motion.

Disturbing Meetings

No person shall interrupt, disturb or disrupt any regular or special meeting of the
elected Board. Upon direction of the Presiding Officer, with approval of the elected
Board, any such person shall be required to leave the Board Room and, potentially,
the BPU building.

Voting

All resolutions or motions or other items of business shall be passed by the affirmative
vote of no less than four (4) elected Board Members, unless otherwise provided by
law.

The Presiding Officer may utilize a voice vote for the approval of minutes, agenda
items, or other matters where a roll call vote is not required by law; provided, however,
that a roll call vote shall be taken upon the timely request of any elected Board
Member.

A vote lacking the required number of affirmative votes shall constitute defeat of an
item.

An elected Board Member may change his or her vote only if a timely request to do
so is made prior to the announcement of the vote by the Presiding Officer.

If a quorum of the elected Board is present and a majority of the Members voting vote
in favor of a particular matter, abstentions from voting are to be counted as
acquiescence with the votes of the majority, and the action will bind the body.

Votes shall not be taken when a quorum is not present.
The Presiding Officer shall announce the vote upon every matter upon which a vote

is taken. The vote on any matter shall not go into effect until announced by the
Presiding Officer.



7.5

7.6

Motions in General

A motion is the formal statement by an elected Member of the Board of a proposal or
question to the Board for consideration and action.

No motion shall be debated or otherwise acted upon by the elected Board unless it is
seconded, or unless otherwise provided in these rules. No further action is required on
a motion which does not receive a second. Neither the maker nor seconder of a motion
shall be required to vote in favor of that motion.

When a motion is made and seconded, it may be restated by the Presiding Officer
before a vote.

Unless otherwise provided by law, a motion shall not be deemed passed unless it
receives the affirmative vote of no less than four (4) elected Board Members.

A motion once before the elected Board may not be withdrawn by the maker without
the consent of the second.

Specific Motions
A. The following ordinary motions shall be permitted in the elected Board meeting
as set forth in this Section. The voting precedence of motions, when a main motion
is before the Board, and the purpose and features of such motions shall be as
follows:
1) Motion to adjourn.
Purpose: To terminate a meeting.
Debatable or amendable: Yes.

2) Motion to recess.

Purpose: To permit an interlude in the meeting and to set a definite
time for continuing the meeting.

Debatable or amendable: Yes, but restricted to time or duration of
recess.

3) Motion to postpone to a definite time.

Purpose: To prevent further discussion and voting on the main motion
until a specified future date or event. If the motion fails, discussion
and voting on the main motion resumes. If it passes, the subject of the
main motion shall not be placed upon the agenda again until the
specified date or event.

Debatable or amendable: Yes, but restricted to time.



4)

(5)

(6)

(7

(8)

)

Motion to table.

Purpose: To set aside a pending main motion until a specific time
later in the same meeting or the next following meeting. A motion to
take from the table shall not be required.

Debatable or amendable: Yes, but restricted to time.
Motion to close debate.

Purpose: To prevent or stop discussion on the pending debatable
motion or motions and to bring such question or questions to vote
immediately. If the motion passes, a vote shall be taken on the
pending motion or motions. This shall require an affinitive vote of no
less than four (4) elected Board Members.

Debatable or amendable: No.
Motion to extend debate.

Purpose: To extend the time that will be devoted to discussion of a
pending motion or to extend or remove limitations already imposed
on its discussion.

Debatable or amendable: Not debatable; amendments are restricted
to period of time of the proposed extension.

Motion to refer to staff or elected Board Committee.

Purpose: To refer the main motion before the Board to staff or an
elected Board Committee for the purpose of investigating or studying
the proposal and to make a report back to the elected Board. If the
motion fails, discussion or vote on the question resumes. If the motion
succeeds, the main motion to which it is applied shall be placed upon
the agenda after such investigation or study is completed.

Motion to Amend.

Purpose: To modify or change a motion that is being considered by
the elected Board so that it will express more satisfactorily the will of
the Members. An amendment (primary amendment) may be amended
by means of another (secondary) amendment, but an amendment to
the secondary amendment is not in order. Only one primary and
secondary amendment may be pending at any one time. The
secondary amendment shall be voted upon before the primary
amendment. If the motion passes, then the motion would be voted on
as amended.

Debatable or amendable: It is debatable unless applied to an
undebatable motion. It is amendable.

Motion to postpone indefinitely.



(10)

Purpose: To postpone a main motion until further elected Board
action. If the motion fails, discussion and voting on the main motion
resumes.

Debatable or amendable: It is debatable but not amendable.
Main motion.
Purpose: To place the agenda item before discussion and decision.

Debatable or amendable: Yes.

The following special motions shall be permitted in the elected Board Meeting as
set forth in this Section, at any time, and shall be voted upon in the order of making
and prior to ordinary motions:

0]

)

3)

)

Motion to suspend the rules.

Purpose: To temporarily suspend a specific rule adopted by the
elected Board. Requires an affirmative vote of no less than four (4)
elected Board Members.

Debatable or amendable: No.
Motion to take up an item out of agenda order.

Purpose: To place an agenda item in a different position upon the
agenda for elected Board consideration.

Debatable or amendable: Debatable as to position, but not amendable.

Motion to consolidate agenda items.

Purpose: To consolidate the consideration of items upon the agenda.
If successful, the motion shall operate to take up out of order the items
which are referred to and shall be considered as moving and
seconding of all bills referred to in the motion which has not
previously been moved and seconded. A vote on such consolidated
bills shall be considered a vote on both items.

Debatable or amendable: Debatable, not amendable.
Motion to reconsider a vote.

Purpose: To permit subsequent vote on a motion which has
previously been voted upon. A motion to reconsider must be made by
an elected Board Member who voted on the prevailing side of the
vote to be reconsidered; provided, however, that where a motion has
received a majority vote in the affirmative, but is declared lost solely
on the ground that a greater number of affirmative votes is required
by statutes for the passage or adoption of such motion, then in such
case a motion to reconsider may be made only by those who voted in

10



7.7

7.8

7.9

7.10

the affirmative on such question to be reconsidered. Once made and
decided in the negative, a motion to reconsider shall not be renewed.

Debatable or amendable: Not amendable, and debatable only as to
reopening.

Point of Order/Appeal

This procedure may be utilized at any time and shall not require a second.

Purpose: To raise a question regarding the procedure or rules followed by the
Presiding Officer. The Presiding Officer shall decide the point before further business
is conducted. Any point of order not promptly made shall be out of order and deemed
waived. Any Member may appeal to the elected Board from a ruling of the Presiding
Officer. The Member making the appeal may briefly state his or her reason for the
same, and the Presiding Officer may briefly explain his or her ruling; but there shall
be no debate on the appeal and no other Member shall participate in the discussion.
The Presiding Officer shall then call for a vote in the following manner. “Shall the
decision of the Chair be upheld?” If a majority of the Members present vote “No”, the
decision of the Presiding Officer shall be overruled, otherwise it shall be sustained.

Point of Personal Privilege
This procedure may be utilized at any time and shall not require a second.

Purpose: To allow a Member to address the elected Board regarding a question of his
or her integrity, character or motives or physical comfort.

Request for Information
This procedure may be utilized at any time and shall not require a second.

Purpose: To request information from the Presiding Officer or speaker. The request
for information shall be made through the Presiding Officer, or directly to the speaker
by leave of the Presiding Officer.

Suggestion to Fill in Blanks

This procedure may be utilized at any time and shall not require a second.

Purpose: To insert names, figures or times into a resolution or other item that has
blanks as placed upon the agenda. After the main motion has been moved and
seconded, any Member may suggest one item or a group of items to fill in such blanks
relating to the same resolution or item. When blanks to be filled consist of a
combination of items or names, the vote on blanks shall be in order of suggestion.
When blanks to be filled consist solely of sums or times, the vote shall be taken in
order with the smallest sum and longest date considered first.

11



8.1

8.2

9.1

9.2

Rule 8
Minutes

Application

Minutes of all regular and special meetings shall be recorded. Such minutes shall be
maintained in the administrative offices of the Board of Public Utilities, and shall be
open to the public. The minutes shall reflect:

(1) The date, time and place of the meeting or session;

(2) The Members recorded as either present or absent;

(3) A general description of all matters proposed, discussed or decided; and
(4) Record of any votes taken.

An elected Board Member may request, through the Presiding Officer, the privilege
of having his or her comments or written statement entered into the minutes
concerning any resolution or item pending before the elected Board, provided that the
General Manager shall abstract such verbal comments and further provided that any
such written comments be distributed to all elected Board Members.

Approval

Approval of minutes shall be considered at the next regular elected Board meeting. It
shall not be necessary to read the minutes prior to approval. Such minutes may be
revised by the General Manager to correct spelling, numbering and other such
technical defects. Prior to approval, any elected Member may, through the Presiding
Officer, request the privilege of amending or correcting the minutes to speak the truth.
[f objection is made by any elected Board Members to such amendment or correction,
a majority vote of the elected Board shall be necessary for adoption of the correction
or amendment.

Rule 9
Documents

Error Corrections

When a resolution or other item that has been placed on a meeting agenda contains
typographical or non-substantive syntactical errors, the item may be corrected by the
General Manager prior to or after adopted or vote without formal amendment;
provided, however, that such changes shall not alter the result intended by the elected
Board. Changes shall be made upon the original item included on the agenda, dated
and initialed by the General Manager, and if necessary, the agenda version of such
item shall be retyped and re-executed by the Presiding Officer and/or Secretary; such
corrected elected Board item shall become the original document. Changes shall be
noted at the next regular elected Board meeting.

Authorized Signatory

The Presiding Officer and/or Secretary shall sign all resolutions and other documents
requiring his or her signature which were adopted in his or her presence, unless he or

12



10.1

10.2

10.3

she is unavailable, in which case the next alternate Presiding Officer and/or Secretary
may sign such documents.

Rule 10
Change in Board Rules

Failure to Observe Procedures

The provisions of these Rules of Procedure are adopted to expedite the transaction of
the business of the elected Board in an orderly fashion and are deemed to be
procedural only. The failure to strictly observe such rules by the elected Board shall
not affect the jurisdiction of the elected Board or invalidate any action taken at a
meeting that is otherwise held in conformity with law.

Amendment of Rules

These Rules of Procedure may be amended by the affirmative vote of no less than four
(4) elected Board Members.

Suspension of Rules

Any one of the Rules of Procedure may be suspended temporarily by the elected Board
providing such suspension is not contrary to applicable law.

13






